

Club Bylaws
(Adopted 04/12/12)

Article I. Name

The name of this club shall be **High Desert Photographers Club**, located in Idaho Falls, Idaho and herein referred to as "The Club".

Article II. Purposes

The purpose of this organization shall be:

- a. association for the enjoyment of photography,
- b. advancement of its members in the art of photography,
- c. understanding the science of photography,
- d. and contributions to the progress of photography.

The Club will organize regular meetings involving programs such as guest speakers and photo discussions. We will also organize photo exhibits, photo workshops, and field trips. We may also volunteer to photograph community events.

Article II. Membership

1. A Club Member shall be any person who has paid the annual dues, shares in the purposes of the Club, and participates in Club meetings and activities. A Club Member is entitled to participate in all Club functions.
2. A Guest of the Club shall be any person who has not paid the annual dues but is welcome to attend Club meetings. However a Guest is not entitled to participate in any other Club privileges such as holding office, voting, attending special group and class meetings, entering into competitions, and using Club resources. Repeatedly returning guests are expected to join.

Article III. Officers and Board of Directors

Article IIIA. Officers

1. Board representatives shall be:
 - a. President
 - b. Vice President
 - c. Treasurer
 - d. Secretary
 - e. Newsletter Editor
 - f. Webmaster
 - g. Directors
 - h. Special Appointments (as deemed necessary)
2. All officers shall be nominated by the Board of Directors and elected by the membership.
3. The President and Vice President shall be elected for a one year term and shall be eligible to succeed themselves for additional terms, if elected by the membership. All other officers may serve without regards to any term limit.
4. If the President must be absent, the next Officer will fill in during the meeting or function.

Bylaws – High Desert Photographers Club

5. An Officer serves at the discretion of the Board of Directors and may be removed from office at anytime for any reason.

Article IIIB. Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors shall consist of Club Members elected by the membership. Board Members shall serve on the Board until the Board Member chooses to resign or a vote of the membership removes a Board Member from the Board for any reason.
2. The Board of Directors shall nominate Officers of the Club for a vote by the Club Members.
3. The Board of Directors shall set forth the duties of the Officers in Attachment A of these Articles.
4. The Board of Directors will meet as often as necessary, at least once a year, to address Club issues. Any Board Member may call a meeting of the Board.
5. A meeting of the Board of Directors will be deemed official if at least three (3) Board Members are in attendance.
6. Meetings of the Board will be open to the membership.
7. Issues considered by the Board will become effective upon passage by a simple majority of Board Members present. In case of a tie vote the matter will be tabled until a vote of all Board Members can be obtained.
8. Board Members must maintain membership in the Club.

Article IV. Committees

1. The President will appoint committees for efficient operation of the Club.
2. President will have power to appoint special committees at any time, which will then be terminated upon completion of special functions.

Article V. Finances

1. A Financial Record of the Club shall be reviewed on a semi-annual basis. Each financial review shall include starting balance, expenses and ending balance. Prior to the start of each year the Board of Directors shall set annual dues.
2. Dues shall be paid to the Treasurer by the end of January each year. Club Members joining after June 1 of each year shall pay one half the annual dues.
3. Financial affairs of the Club shall be administered by the Treasurer, who shall disburse funds as described in Attachment A, Treasurer's duties.
4. Disbursement of Club funds shall require the signature of the Treasurer, President, or a Board Member designated by the Board of Directors.
5. In the event of dissolution of the Club, all funds held by the Club shall be distributed equally among Club Members. Club equipment shall be sold and the proceeds distributed equally among Club Members.

Article VI. Meetings

1. Regular meetings of the Club shall be held twice monthly.

Bylaws – High Desert Photographers Club

2. A quorum for business meetings shall consist of 50% of the paid Club members present at the meeting.

Article VII. Amendments

1. Amendments to these Articles of Association proposed and sponsored by at least five Club Members shall be submitted in writing to the President and Officers of the Club. If the amendment is approved by a majority vote of general membership, the President shall direct the Board of Directors to amend these articles of association to reflect the adopted amendment.

Article VIII. Publications

2. Club shall maintain a website and publish a monthly newsletter.

Article IX. Voting

3. A Club Member shall be entitled to cast one vote.
4. Issues brought before the Club for a vote must be first be proposed and seconded and then shall be passed by a simple majority vote to be instituted.
5. A vote of the Club shall be considered valid only if quorum requirements are met.

**Attachment A
Duties of Officers**

PRESIDENT

It is the responsibility of the President to execute the Board-approved calendar. The President is responsible to appoint committee chairs sufficient to carry out the program set by the Board in its annual calendar. The President presides over all Board Meetings and serves as Chair of the Board. The normal term of the President shall be one year. The President will serve as liaison between the Club and other external agencies. The President:

- Conducts the monthly meetings.
- Arranges for the meeting room.
- Calls and conducts meetings of Club officers for Club business.
- Supplies newsworthy information concerning Club Information to the Newsletter Editor.
- Makes a *Thank You* announcement at monthly meetings recognizing those who brought food and drink.

VICE PRESIDENT

The Vice President(s) shall be responsible for the oversight of all Club programs including regular meetings with speakers, photo review meetings, shows, competitions, field trips, seminars, and special events. A committee chairperson may be appointed by the Vice President with Board approval to coordinate the effort of a committee of volunteer members for any of these activities as determined by the Board.

The Program Vice President shall serve as the Club President in the President's absence or inability to carry out the office. In the event that the President resigns his/her position before his/her term ends the Program Vice President shall complete the term as Club President. The normal term of the Program Vice President shall be one year. The Vice President:

- Conducts monthly meetings in President's absence.
- Assumes the duties of the Program or Competition Coordinator if these coordinators are unable to attend meetings.

TREASURER

The Treasurer shall keep financial records for the Club, transact Club business (pay bills as authorized, collect receivables, and control the Club bank account), and report the Club's financial position to the Board quarterly. For events requiring a registration fee, the Treasurer will oversee and control the activities of collecting monies and maintaining registration records. The normal term of the Treasurer shall be one year. The Treasurer:

- Provides an accounting on the financial affairs of the Club from time to time at the regular meetings.
- Deposits funds in an FDIC approved banking institution.
- Maintains financial records of the Club to be made available for any Club Member's examination upon reasonable request.

Bylaws – High Desert Photographers Club

- Is responsible for the Club's monies, including managing the Club checking account, depositing and writing checks, and balancing the checking account.
- Is responsible for disbursing funds on the Club's behalf subject to the following restrictions: (a) Funds up to \$50 may be dispersed to cover normal Club expenses. (b) Funds in excess of \$50 and up to the greater of 10% of the Club's bank balance or \$300 may be dispersed only after approval of the majority of the Club's Officers and Board of Directors. (c) Funds in excess of the greater of 10% of the Club's bank balance or \$300 may be dispersed only after approval of the majority of Club Members present at any monthly meeting.
- Receives membership dues.
- Maintains a list of paid up Club Members.
- Provides information concerning membership status.

SECRETARY

The Secretary shall record and maintain minutes of all Board meetings, record all election results, record and maintain current membership information including contact information, meeting attendance and dates/attendance for all other functions. The Secretary shall be responsible for the recording of all Club competition results. The Secretary shall maintain minutes for each meeting, provide all board members with copies of the minutes, and file copies with the President. The normal term of the Secretary shall be one year.

NEWSLETTER EDITOR

- Publishes the monthly Club newsletter.
- Receives information from the Program and Competition Coordinators for incorporation into the newsletter.
- Actively seeks newsworthy information of interest to the Club for publication in the newsletter.
- Obtains information concerning the monthly competition for publication in the newsletter.

WEBMASTER

Maintains and develops a website that promotes The Club and facilitates its operation. The website should: 1) contain information about upcoming meetings, 2) showcase competition images, 3) provide for the distribution and archive of Club newsletters, 4) maintain the membership list and provide a Directory for the Club Members, 5) protect Privacy information when applicable, 6) abide by all copyright laws, and 7) provide a mass communication system via email.

DIRECTORS

- All Directors must comply with these articles

Bylaws – High Desert Photographers Club

- Directors are members of a Board of Directors who make decisions on behalf of the Organization. No single Director or Group of Directors may make a decision in conflict with these articles or rules of the Club
- No single Director or Group of Directors may commit to expenditure of Club funds which is not covered by an approved budget or specific Board approval.
- The Board of Directors, by majority vote, may approve budget expenditure up to \$500. Any expenditure over \$500 must have approval by the general membership.
- Directors must be discreet when operating under the aegis of the City. Any personal concerns or criticisms must be presented as a private citizen. When in doubt, Directors should refer such issues to the President.
- Directors help establish monthly themes and coordination of monthly meetings, including acting as the lead coordinator for an assigned month.

COMMITTEES

The Directors of the Club may appoint committees to carry out the Club's annual program as determined by the Board. Committee Members must abide by these articles and the policies of the Club.